
Fox Cities Transit Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor2:50 PMTuesday, July 25, 2023

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

23-0885 Approval of minutes from previous meeting

Meeting Minutes 27-Jun-2023.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

23-0278 Public Participation on Agenda Items

6. Action Items

23-0886 Approval of Payments

June 2023 Payments.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

23-0887 2022 Audit presentation 

Valley Transit 2022 Audit.pdfAttachments:

23-0888 Financial Report

June 2023 Income Statement.pdfAttachments:

23-0889 Ridership Report

June Ridership.pdfAttachments:

23-0890 2nd Quarter KPI

FR 2nd qtr KPI.pdf

DR 2nd qtr KPI.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 7/20/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23060
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a68f54d6-387e-424c-a00a-feec0327391f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22454
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23061
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5df43ee1-ffd3-45ee-a47a-cb4dfa972bd3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23062
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=93e73704-c99f-4ce0-8857-7d3492308a29.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23063
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2033b18b-8d38-459e-8848-229a67392b8b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23064
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84a8358e-e49a-40af-922f-d9e64a4c2ae5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23065
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c0440e5-f6b0-4ffd-8bc9-265ba25b09f2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9970e67c-6378-43ed-8258-c6e7aec0f9fc.pdf


July 25, 2023Fox Cities Transit Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0891 Request for Future Agenda Items

8. Next Meeting Date & Time

 - August 8, 2023 - 2:50 PM - Cancelled

 - August 22, 2023 - 2:50 PM

9. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during 

this meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 7/20/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23066


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Fox Cities Transit Commission

2:50 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorTuesday, June 27, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

In person attendees:  Chairperson Dearborn, Wurdinger, Brown, Patza 

Torrance, Dexter, Holzschuh

Virtual attendees:  Kasimor, Detienne

Kasimor, Dexter, Chairperson Dearborn, Wurdinger, Detienne, Patza, 

Torrance, Brown and Holzschuh
Present: 9 - 

VandeHey, Firkus and JonesExcused: 3 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-0757 Approval of minutes from previous meeting

Meeting Minutes 23-May-2023.pdfAttachments:

Commissioner Wurdinger moved, seconded by Commissioner Patza, that the 

Minutes be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

23-0278 Public Participation on Agenda Items

No public participation on agenda items.

Action Items6.

23-0762 Authorization to Purchase Replacement Bus Shelters

Bus Shelter purchase memo and quotes.pdfAttachments:

Amended to include optional solar panels.

Commissioner Torrance moved, seconded by Commissioner Dexter, that the 

Report Action Item be amended. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22932
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a5f5436-630f-486b-b6a1-965dee070a1e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22454
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22937
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9f9ab236-aadc-4acd-83b0-2a9b8f1ba650.pdf


June 27, 2023Fox Cities Transit Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

Commissioner Torrance moved, seconded by Commissioner Dexter, that the 

Report Action Item be recommended for approval as amended. Voice Vote. 

Motion Carried.

23-0763 Authorization to enter into the First Option Year Extension with Star 

Protection and Patrol for Security Services at the Downtown Transit 

Center

Star Protection Memo.pdf

Star Protection 2023- Proposal For Price Increase.pdf

Attachments:

Commissioner Brown moved, seconded by Commissioner Patza, that the 

Report Action Item be recommended for approval. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

Information Items7.

23-0761 Approval of Payments

May 2023 Payments.pdfAttachments:

This action item was moved to information items.

Commissioner Wurdinger moved, seconded by Commissioner Brown, that the 

Report Action Item be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.

23-0765 Financial Report

May 2023 Income Statement.pdfAttachments:

This Presentation was presented.

23-0766 Ridership Report

FCTC Monthly FR - May 2023.pdf

FCTC Monthly DR - May 2023.pdf

Attachments:

This Presentation was presented.

23-0283 Request for Future Agenda Items

This Presentation was discussed.

Next Meeting Date & Time

 - July 11, 2023 - 2:50 PM - Cancelled

 - July 25, 2023 - 2:50 PM

8.

Adjournment9.

A motion was made by Commissioner Brown, seconded by Commissioner 

Patza, that this meeting was adjourned..  The motion carried unanimously.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22938
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d99f147-5ad5-4d4c-99f7-d52426486e77.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e3cf6ffe-346d-4450-b4cf-92320b2272b3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22936
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf62efa9-e4a0-4825-b8ff-01c692dcc2ca.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22940
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f3c47875-a533-4ded-ae6d-d3aeb1fd33ab.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22941
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b66d995f-cab2-4949-9d7a-430e65839c29.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe3b074a-e08d-429e-84a3-d17dc6fbe1db.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22459


City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      1

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
58071000                                  VT 5307 Admin
58071000 620100                                         Training/Conferences
  002951 APPLETON NOON LIONS  103123                0        2023  6 INV P             395.00 062123      559455  Senior Expo booth
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               395.00
 
58071000 620500                                         Employee Recruitment
  002158 CAREERBUILDER        103733                0        2023  6 INV P              77.56 071223      559760 May Postings
 
  999990 TRANSITTALENT.COM    104074                0        2023  6 INV P             255.00 pcard              Recruitment/ Advert
  999990 TRANSITTALENT.COM    104075                0        2023  6 INV P            -120.00 pcard              Recruitment/ Advert
  999990 TRANSITTALENT.COM    104823                0        2023  6 INV P             135.00 pcard              Advertisement for B
                                                                                       270.00 
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               347.56
 
58071000 630100                                         Office Supplies
  001198 SAM'S CLUB           102971                0        2023  6 INV P             116.40 pcard              Supplies
  001198 SAM'S CLUB           102972                0        2023  6 INV P             207.64 pcard              Supplies
                                                                                       324.04 
 
  999990 QUILL CORPORATION    103024                0        2023  6 INV P              81.54 pcard              Office Supplies
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               405.58
 
58071000 630200                                         Subscriptions
  999990 GAN*WINEWSPAPERCIRC  102954                0        2023  6 INV P              43.00 pcard              Monthly subscriptio
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL                43.00
 
58071000 630400                                         Postage / Freight
  001583 UNITED STATES POSTAL 103931                0        2023  6 INV P               2.46 pcard              FCTC postage
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL                 2.46
 
58071000 630500                                         Awards & Recognition
  999990 SP WISCONSIN TIMBER  102950                0        2023  6 INV P             100.00 pcard              Employee awards/rec
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               100.00
 
58071000 631603                                         Other Misc. Supplies
  999990 TOBACCO OUTLET000055 103898                0        2023  6 INV P               7.47 pcard              Ice for Ops
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL                 7.47
 
58071000 632002                                         Outside Printing
  001121 QUICK PRINT CENTER,  103023                0        2023  6 INV P              73.63 pcard              Forms
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL                73.63
 



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      2

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
58071000 640300                                         Bank Service Fees
  000814 LOOMIS ARMORED US, L 102207                0        2023  6 INV P             166.22 060723      559307 ARMORED CAR SERVICE
  000814 LOOMIS ARMORED US, L 103684                0        2023  6 INV P             166.96 070523      559713 ARMORED CAR SERVICE
                                                                                       333.18 
 
  999998 SOAR Fox Cities, Inc 103716                0        2023  6 INV P              18.00 070523      559719 Incorrect charge to
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               351.18
 
58071000 640800                                         Contractor Fees
  001237 SHRED-IT USA         103025                0        2023  6 INV P              55.90 pcard              Shredding service
 
  001771 RED SHOES PR, INC.   102570                0        2023  6 INV P           4,877.50 062123      559552 May marketing effor
 
  003012 LANGUAGE LINE        102580                0        2023  6 INV P              91.44 062123      559510 Translation service
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             5,024.84
 
58071000 641200                                         Advertising
  001771 RED SHOES PR, INC.   102572                0        2023  6 INV P           5,000.00 062123      559552 Digital Advertising
 
  002694 RNS COMMUNICATIONS I 102583                0        2023  6 INV P             600.00 062123      559553 Advertising
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             5,600.00
 
58071000 641308                                         Cellular Phones
  000250 CELLCOM APPLETON PCS 102953                0        2023  6 INV P           1,232.50 pcard              Cell phones and dat
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             1,232.50
 
58071000 641800                                         Equip Repairs & Maint
  999990 FSC CORP             103932                0        2023  6 INV P             204.99 pcard              Cash counter repair
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               204.99
 
58071000 642400                                         Software Support
  002593 TRANSTRACK           102612                0        2023  6 INV P          27,559.50 062123      559571 Annual software mai
  002593 TRANSTRACK           102613                0        2023  6 INV P           1,140.00 062123      559571 Language support fo
  002593 TRANSTRACK           102614                0        2023  6 INV P             195.00 062123      559571 Multiple Language s
                                                                                    28,894.50 
 
  999990 ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 103020                0        2023  6 INV P           1,521.90 pcard              Teleconference serv
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            30,416.40
 
58071000 650100                                         Insurance
  001783 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY I 102606                0        2023  6 INV P           1,283.00 062123      559530 Whitman constructio
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             1,283.00
 



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      3

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
                                                      ORG 58071000 TOTAL            45,487.61
 
58072000                                  VT 5307 Vehicle Maintenance
58072000 630901                                         Shop Supplies
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103704                0        2023  6 INV P                .30 070523      559721 Supply
 
  000176 BELSON COMPANY       103111                0        2023  6 INV P             341.44 062123      559464  liners all sizes
 
  000615 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS  102594                0        2023  6 INV P             129.58 062123      559493 Shop supplies
  000615 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS  102595                0        2023  6 INV P             102.00 062123      559493 Shop supplies
                                                                                       231.58 
 
  000866 MENARDS              103908                0        2023  6 INV P               1.35 pcard              Shop supplies
 
  001194 SAFETY-KLEEN         102566                0        2023  6 INV P             368.60 062123      559556 Shop supplies
  001194 SAFETY-KLEEN         102567                0        2023  6 INV P              96.50 062123      559556 Shop supplies
                                                                                       465.10 
 
  001316 SUPERIOR CHEMICAL CO 103698                0        2023  6 INV P             759.85 070523      559730 Shop supplies
 
  001333 TARTAN SUPPLY CO., I 102491                0        2023  6 INV P              28.72 pcard              TARTAN SUPPLY CO LL
 
  001655 AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLY CO 102623                0        2023  6 INV P             615.22 062123      559461 Parts and supplies
 
  999990 HOBBY-LOBBY #0193    103886                0        2023  6 INV P              53.10 pcard              Shop supplies
  999990 MGD INDUSTRIAL CORP  103909                0        2023  6 INV P              12.43 pcard              Shop supplies
  999990 TARTAN SUPPLY CO LLC 103948                0        2023  6 INV P             660.28 pcard              TARTAN SUPPLY CO LL
                                                                                       725.81 
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             3,169.37
 
58072000 632200                                         Gas Purchases
  000763 KWIK TRIP, INC       102535                0        2023  6 INV P             448.44 062123      559507 May fuel
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               448.44
 
58072000 632601                                         Repair Parts
  000006 ABC BUS, INC.        102587                0        2023  6 INV P             261.24 062123      559449 Parts
  000006 ABC BUS, INC.        103713                0        2023  6 INV P           3,463.12 070523      559679 Parts
  000006 ABC BUS, INC.        103714                0        2023  6 INV P           2,216.76 070523      559679 Parts
                                                                                     5,941.12 
 
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 102573                0        2023  6 INV P             560.25 062123      559534 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 102574                0        2023  6 INV P               5.70 062123      559534 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 102575                0        2023  6 INV P             206.95 062123      559534 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 102576                0        2023  6 INV P           4,107.56 062123      559534 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 102577                0        2023  6 INV P              34.86 062123      559534 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103183                0        2023  6 INV P           2,575.16 062823      559634 Parts



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      4

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103184                0        2023  6 INV P               6.56 062823      559634 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103700                0        2023  6 INV P           4,683.49 070523      559721 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103701                0        2023  6 INV P             440.55 070523      559721 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103702                0        2023  6 INV P             281.85 070523      559721 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103703                0        2023  6 INV P           5,106.40 070523      559721 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103705                0        2023  6 INV P           2,878.12 070523      559721 Parts
  000089 NEW FLYER OF AMERICA 103706                0        2023  6 INV P             216.04 070523      559721 Parts
                                                                                    21,103.49 
 
  000569 GILLIG LLC           102621                0        2023  6 INV P             660.80 062123      559489 Parts
 
  000913 MOHAWK MANUFACTURING 102579                0        2023  6 INV P           3,154.82 062123      559527 Parts
  000913 MOHAWK MANUFACTURING 102593                0        2023  6 CRM P          -1,944.00 062123      559527 Credit for returned
  000913 MOHAWK MANUFACTURING 102616                0        2023  6 INV P             455.46 062123      559527 Parts
                                                                                     1,666.28 
 
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102596                0        2023  6 INV P           4,359.92 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102597                0        2023  6 INV P           6,449.00 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102598                0        2023  6 INV P           8,420.73 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102599                0        2023  6 INV P           1,908.68 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102600                0        2023  6 INV P           1,113.40 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102601                0        2023  6 INV P           5,773.12 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102602                0        2023  6 INV P           1,589.96 062123      559500 Parts
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102603                0        2023  6 INV P           1,066.34 062123      559500 Parts
                                                                                    30,681.15 
 
  001607 GRAINGER, INC.       103962                0        2023  6 INV P              41.13 pcard              Parts
  001607 GRAINGER, INC.       103963                0        2023  6 INV P              71.04 pcard              Parts
                                                                                       112.17 
 
  001637 ROSS & WHITE COMPA   103887                0        2023  6 INV P           1,068.84 pcard              Bus wash parts
 
  001655 AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLY CO 102622                0        2023  6 INV P              28.13 062123      559461 Parts
  001655 AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLY CO 102623                0        2023  6 INV P              90.92 062123      559461 Parts and supplies
                                                                                       119.05 
 
  999990 GEIB INDUSTRIES, INC 103949                0        2023  6 INV P             623.89 pcard              Parts
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            61,976.79
 
58072000 641700                                         Vehicle Repairs & Maint
  001595 JX TRUCK CENTER      102617                0        2023  6 INV P           1,303.94 062123      559500 Vehicle maintenance
 
  001597 NOLTE'S TOWING       102578                0        2023  6 INV P             307.02 062123      559537 Tow 1936
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             1,610.96
 



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      5

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
58072000 641800                                         Equip Repairs & Maint
  000172 BAYCOM, INC.         102633                0        2023  6 INV P             607.50 062123      559463 Equipment maintenan
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               607.50
 
58072000 643000                                         Health Services
  001588 THEDACARE, INC.      102563                0        2023  6 INV P              83.30 062123      559567 DOT Physicals
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL                83.30
 
                                                      ORG 58072000 TOTAL            67,896.36
 
58073000                                  VT 5307 Building Maintenance
58073000 640700                                         Solid Waste/Recycling Pickup
  002545 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL    102918                0        2023  6 INV P             232.50 pcard              GFL Trash service
  002545 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL    102919                0        2023  6 INV P             104.00 pcard              GFL Recycling May '
  002545 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL    104747                0        2023  6 INV P             232.50 pcard              GFL - trash June 20
  002545 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL    104748                0        2023  6 INV P             104.00 pcard              GFL ENVIRONMENTAL -
                                                                                       673.00 
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               673.00
 
58073000 641600                                         Build Repairs & Maint
  000758 KUETTEL'S SEPTIC SER 102620                0        2023  6 INV P             425.00 062123      559504 Floor pit cleaning
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               425.00
 
58073000 659900                                         Other Contracts/Obligation
  002401 CLEAN POWER, LLC     102067                0        2023  6 INV P             573.22 060723      559267 ALL-June, 2023 Jani
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               573.22
 
58073000 680300 1800                                    Buildings
  001021 WESTWOOD INFRASTRUCT 103697                0        2023  6 INV P           1,347.00 070523      559741 Transit Center proj
 
  002967 LHB, INC             102607                0        2023  6 INV P           2,224.00 062123      559514 Transit Center need
 
  999990 WWW.FIELDWIRE.COM    104628                0        2023  6 INV P              41.63 pcard              WWW.FIELDWIRE.COM V
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             3,612.63
 
                                                      ORG 58073000 TOTAL             5,283.85
 
58074000                                  VT 5307 Operations
58074000 487500 1817                                    Farebox Revenue
  999998 SOAR Fox Cities, Inc 103716                0        2023  6 INV P             572.00 070523      559719 Incorrect charge to
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               572.00
 
58074000 632101                                         Uniforms
  000316 COONEY'S EMBROIDERY  102584                0        2023  6 INV P             223.00 062123      559475 Uniforms



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      6

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
 
  001396 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103122                0        2023  6 INV P              77.61 062123      559572 Uniforms
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               300.61
 
58074000 632200                                         Gas Purchases
  001608 GARROW OIL CORPORATI 103153                230434   2023  6 INV P          19,530.29 062123      559486 #2 Ultra Low Sulfur
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            19,530.29
 
58074000 632602                                         Tires
  001926 GOODYEAR TIRE AND RU 102608                0        2023  6 INV P           3,142.97 062123      559490 April 2023 Mileage
  001926 GOODYEAR TIRE AND RU 102609                0        2023  6 INV P           3,315.83 062123      559490 May 2023 Mileage
                                                                                     6,458.80 
 
  001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC.  102581                0        2023  6 INV P             128.00 062123      559521 Tire repair
  001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC.  102582                0        2023  6 INV P             140.00 062123      559521 Tire service
  001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC.  102618                0        2023  6 INV P              10.00 062123      559521 Tire repair
  001996 MATTHEWS TIRE, INC.  102619                0        2023  6 INV P              40.00 062123      559521 Tire repair
                                                                                       318.00 
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             6,776.80
 
58074000 640800                                         Contractor Fees
  002229 STAR PROTECTION AND  102569                0        2023  6 INV P           8,742.64 062123      559560 Transit Center Secu
 
  002401 CLEAN POWER, LLC     102585                0        2023  6 INV P           3,855.25 062123      559472 Level 1 bus cleanin
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            12,597.89
 
58074000 643000                                         Health Services
  001588 THEDACARE, INC.      102561                0        2023  6 INV P              83.30 062123      559565 DOT Physicals
  001588 THEDACARE, INC.      102562                0        2023  6 INV P             344.25 062123      559566 DOT Physicals
  001588 THEDACARE, INC.      102564                0        2023  6 INV P              83.30 062123      559568 DOT Physicals
  001588 THEDACARE, INC.      102565                0        2023  6 INV P             293.30 062123      559569 DOT Physicals
                                                                                       804.15 
 
  003122 ASCENSION MEDICAL GR 102586                0        2023  6 INV P             138.00 062123      559460 DOT Physicals
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               942.15
 
58074000 659900                                         Other Contracts/Obligation
  001198 SAM'S CLUB           103930                0        2023  6 INV P           2,064.80 pcard              Driver incentive pr
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             2,064.80
 
                                                      ORG 58074000 TOTAL            42,784.54



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      7

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
 
58075000                                  VT 5307 ADA Paratransit
58075000 640800                                         Contractor Fees
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104223                0        2023  6 INV P          91,734.10 071223      559830 June VTII, Sunday a
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            91,734.10
 
58075000 641308                                         Cellular Phones
  001442 VERIZON WIRELESS SER 103929                0        2023  6 INV P             730.71 pcard              Data plan
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               730.71
 
                                                      ORG 58075000 TOTAL            92,464.81
 
58076000                                  VT 5307 Ancillary Paratransit
58076000 640800 1806                                    Contractor Fees
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104223                0        2023  6 INV P           2,894.65 071223      559830 June VTII, Sunday a
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             2,894.65
 
58076000 640800 1807                                    Contractor Fees
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104223                0        2023  6 INV P             130.15 071223      559830 June VTII, Sunday a
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               130.15
 
58076000 640800 1809                                    Contractor Fees OC Demand Resp
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104226                0        2023  6 INV P          30,706.80 071223      559830 June OC Rural servi
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            30,706.80
 
58076000 640800 1813                                    Contractor Fees-Neenah DAR
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104227                0        2023  6 INV P           4,089.75 071223      559830 June NWDAR service
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL             4,089.75
 
58076000 640800 1818                                    Contractor Fees-CC Rural
  001621 CALUMET COUNTY       104230                0        2023  6 INV P             611.84 071223      559759 June Calumet County
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL               611.84
 
58076000 640800 1819                                    Contractor Fees-Connectr Hours
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104225                0        2023  6 INV P          19,712.75 071223      559830 June Connector serv
 
                                                           ACCOUNT TOTAL            19,712.75
 
58076000 640800 1820                                    Contractor Fees-Connector Area
  001186 RUNNING, INC.        104225                0        2023  6 INV P           4,855.50 071223      559830 June Connector serv
 
                                                          ACCOUNT TOTAL              4,855.50
 
                                                      ORG 58076000 TOTAL            63,001.44



City of Appleton

INVOICE LIST BY GL ACCOUNT

Report generated: 07/18/2023 16:12
User:             EbbenDA
Program ID:       apinvgla

Page      8

 
    YEAR/PERIOD: 2023/6  TO 2023/6
  ACCOUNT/VENDOR              DOCUMENT              PO      YEAR/PR  TYP S                   CHECK RUN CHECK     DESCRIPTION
 
 
                FUND 580  Valley Transit                  TOTAL:                   316,918.61

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Debra Ebben **                                           









































































































City of Appleton

VALLEY TRANSIT  INCOME STATEMENT

For Six Months Ending June 30, 2023

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2023 2023

June Year June YTD Amended % of Total

Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget

REVENUES

Bus Fare Revenue 87,353         31,677         330,330        278,524        858,843            38.46%

Paratransit Fare Revenue 36,048         33,852         208,803        202,930        704,430            29.64%

Total Fare Revenue 123,401       65,529         539,133        481,454        1,563,273        34.49%

Other Charges for Service 14,327         7,407            43,205          47,977          65,000              66.47%

Other Revenues 810               3,236            8,544             27,077          14,000              61.03%

TOTAL REVENUES 138,538       76,172         590,882        556,508        1,642,273        35.98%

EXPENSES BY LINE ITEM

Regular Salaries & Labor pool alloc 223,424       207,279       1,325,915     1,270,841     3,419,523        38.77%

Overtime 24,318         25,866         155,455        140,839        76,131              204.19%

Incentive Pay -                     -                     -                      -                      1,335                 0.00%

Other Compensation -                     -                     1,914             1,925             -                          -

Fringes 91,222         87,229         537,898        500,169        1,395,237        38.55%

Unemployment Compensation -                     825               -                      1,849             -                          -

Salaries & Fringe Benefits 338,964       321,199       2,021,182     1,915,623     4,892,226        41.31%

Training & Conferences 395               977               13,455          4,623             27,200              49.47%

Employee Recruitment 348               6,995            5,610             9,597             7,280                 77.06%

Office Supplies 406               13                  2,402             1,224             5,400                 44.48%

Subscriptions 43                  40                  473                358                1,020                 46.37%

Memberships & Licenses 74                  -                     13,191          13,975          18,320              72.00%

Postage & Freight 2                    14                  720                1,068             3,700                 19.46%

Awards & Recognition 100               -                     191                759                930                    20.54%

Food & Provisions -                     283               632                571                1,240                 50.97%

Insurance 12,722         100               247,323        193,156        222,790            98.45%

Insurance dividend & return of surplus -                     -                     (27,981)         (34,713)         -                          -

Depreciation Expense 107,646       102,544       645,879        615,266        1,291,758        50.00%

Administrative Expenses 121,736       110,966       901,895        805,884        1,579,638        57.10%

Landscape Supplies -                     928               425                928                1,500                 28.33%

Shop Supplies & Tools (& misc) 3,176            5,501            18,026          26,868          211,919            8.51%

Printing & Reproduction 74                  1,684            3,486             10,929          27,910              12.49%

Uniforms 301               441               2,054             694                9,290                 22.11%

Gas Purchases 19,979         70,645         251,818        287,724        1,050,500        23.97%

Safety Supplies -                     355               566                2,524             500                    113.20%

Vehicle & Equipment Parts 68,093         42,964         190,687        143,475        205,500            92.79%

Miscellaneous Equipment -                     3,266            5,057             4,194             25,100              20.15%

Signs -                     3,450            5,240             6,220             12,000              43.67%

Supplies & Materials 91,623         129,234       477,359        483,556        1,544,219        30.91%

Accounting/Audit -                     -                     -                      -                      10,000              0.00%

Bank Services 351               178               1,591             1,523             6,680                 23.82%

Consulting Services -                     1,325            -                      19,538          -                          0.00%

Solid Waste/Recycling 673               304               2,019             1,827             5,430                 37.18%

Contractor Fees 184,044       176,284       1,031,873     1,043,892     3,471,907        29.72%

Advertising 5,600            4,250            38,533          9,526             50,309              76.59%

Health Services 1,025            693               6,026             4,635             9,200                 65.50%

Snow Removal Services -                     -                     42,270          9,952             39,000              108.38%

Laundry Services -                     637               3,854             4,356             15,340              25.12%

Other Contracts/Obligations 2,638            869               21,649          13,108          100,790            21.48%

Purchased Services 194,331       184,540       1,147,815     1,108,357     3,708,656        30.95%

 50% of Budget Year Completed
Page 1



City of Appleton

VALLEY TRANSIT  INCOME STATEMENT

For Six Months Ending June 30, 2023

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2023 2023

June Year June YTD Amended % of Total

Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget

Electric -                     3,440            23,743          23,859          55,620              42.69%

Gas -                     774               16,866          17,618          23,000              73.33%

Water 1,824            1,666            4,292             3,827             7,850                 54.68%

Waste Disposal/Collection 981               822               2,303             1,897             4,160                 55.36%

Stormwater 1,885            1,950            5,275             5,253             10,000              52.75%

Telephone 2,107            1,843            9,493             6,624             17,700              53.63%

Utilities 6,797            10,495         61,972          59,078          118,330            52.37%

Building/Grounds Repair & Maintenance 425               651               443                1,261             -                          0.00%

Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 1,611            2,218            6,776             12,190          10,050              67.42%

Equipment Repair & Maintenance 812               950               6,981             2,610             9,650                 72.34%

FMD Charges & Material -                     -                     36,959          42,817          142,503            25.94%

Software Support 30,416         28,355         113,580        112,650        120,097            94.57%

Repairs & Maintenance 33,264         32,174         164,739        171,528        282,300            58.36%

Total Operating Expenses 786,715       788,608       4,774,962     4,544,026     12,125,369      39.38%

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (648,177)     (712,436)     (4,184,080)   (3,987,518)   (10,483,096)     

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Federal Support -                     -                     -                      -                      3,560,391        0.00%

State Support 766,933       707,923       766,933        3,179,318     3,082,885        24.88%

Appleton Support 324,680       275,230       1,948,080     1,651,380     724,810            268.77%

Other Local Support 410,553       198,569       2,038,709     2,014,910     1,899,499        107.33%

Investment Income 14                  -                     50,643          (18,936)         12,500              405.14%

Donations 4,167            4,167            35,155          25,149          63,386              55.46%

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE 1,506,347   1,185,889   4,839,520     6,851,821     9,343,471        51.80%

Buildings 3,612            2,600            155,956        48,712          8,615,174        1.81%

Machinery & Equipment -                     -                     137,094        43,215          -                          0.00%

Furniture & Fixtures -                     -                     -                      -                      25,000              0.00%

Vehicles -                     -                     -                      2,471,395     100,000            0.00%

Capital Expenditures 3,612            2,600            293,050        2,563,322     8,740,174        3.35%

NET INCOME (LOSS) 854,558       470,853       362,390        300,981        (9,879,799)       

 50% of Budget Year Completed
Page 2



City of Appleton

PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION

For Six Months Ending June 30, 2023

Month of Prior YTD As of Prior 2023 2023

June Year June YTD Amended % of Total

Description Actual June Actual June Budget Budget

PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE

VTII - Disabled 93,998         90,000         530,395       539,356       2,052,750         25.84%

VTII - Elderly 3,731            2,642            20,956         14,798         62,480               33.54%

PT - Optional (Sunday) 339               732               1,999            2,909            17,850               11.20%

Outagamie County Demand Response Rural 31,457         29,953         178,024       171,432       289,125            61.57%

Outagamie County Human Services Transportation -                     34                  119               2,907            11,900               1.00%

Neenah Dial - A - Ride 5,087            4,034            28,078         20,492         192,423            14.59%

Calumet County Van Service 2,172            -                     14,172         8,093            28,800               49.21%

Connector - Extended Service Hours 24,231         27,192         136,166       152,054       412,000            33.05%

Connector - Extended Service Area 5,407            5,639            33,475         33,267         141,625            23.64%

Downtown Trolley -                     -                     -                     -                     32,554               0.00%

Total Purchased Transportation 166,422       160,226       943,384       945,308       3,241,507         29.10%

 50% of Budget Year Completed



52,411
 5%

change
49,685
prev. year

Total Passengers

Fare Group Desc Prior Year Current  % Change

Passes & Tickets 25,086 26,753 6.6%

Cash 8,477 8,983 6.0%

Transfers 7,294 8,104 11.1%

AASD 3,853 3,499 -9.2%

FVTC 2,516 2,719 8.1%

Free 2,083 1,946 -6.6%

Lawrence University 376 407 8.2%

Monthly Fare Group Trend

2022 2023

Reporting Route

01 02 03 04 05 06 08 09 11 12 15 16 19 20 30 31 32 41

TR
IP

PE
R

Tr
ol

le
y0

2k

4k

6k

8k

10k

Ridership by Route

Agency FY: 2021 2022 2023

Month

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs

January February March April May June July August September October November December
30k

35k

40k

45k

50k

55k

60k

65k

70k

Monthly Ridership Trend by Year

FCTC Monthly Fixed Route Ridership - June 2023



8,034
 3%

change
7,789
prev. year

Total Passengers

Reporting Route Prior Year Current Year  % Change

VTII-ADA 5,174 5,409 4.54%

CONNECTOR 1,275 1,151 -9.73%

OC-Rural 791 828 4.68%

NWDAR 226 285 26.11%

VTII-Sr 153 211 37.91%

CC-Van Svs 131 133 1.53%

VTII-Sun 37 17 -54.05%

OCHST 2 0 -100.00%

Change in Rides by Program

Prior Year Current Year

Reporting Route

131

1,275

226

791

2

5,174

153 37133

1,151

285

828

0

5,409

211 17

CC
-V

an
 S

vs

CO
N

N
EC

TO
R

N
W

DA
R

O
C-

Ru
ra

l

O
CH

ST

VT
II-

AD
A

VT
II-

Sr

VT
II-

Su
n0

1k

2k

3k

4k

5k

6k

Monthly Ridership by Program

Agency FY: 2021 2022 2023

Month

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs

January February March April May June July August September October November December
6k

7k

8k

9k

10k

11k

Ridership Trend by Year

FCTC Monthly Demand Response Ridership - June 2023



Reliability

Quality

%
 O

n 
Ti

m
e 92.2%

90.8% 91.8% 91.1% 91.3% 91.7%

January February March April May June

80%

90%

100%

On Time Performance

M
ile

s 
b/

t S
ys

te
m

 F
ai

lu
re

s

23,914

33,461

15,422 14,143 12,468

24,877

January February March April May June
0

10k

20k

30k

40k

Total Miles between Major System Failures

Co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

pe
r 1

00
K 

Ri
de

s

12.68

17.08

12.25
13.71

24.36

15.26

January February March April May June
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Complaints per 100K Rides

Page 1/2

Quarterly KPI - Fixed Route Service, 2nd Quarter 2023

On time performance is a primary measure of 
service reliability. A bus is on time if it departs 
a route's scheduled time point between one 
minute early and five minutes late. This graph 
shows the monthly percentage of stops on 
time.
Formula = (on time stops/total stops)

Monthly Benchmark/Target: >90%
*based on industry data

The goal is to minimize bus repair road calls 
through preventative maintenance and asset 
management. This graphs shows the average 
frequency of major system failures. A major 
system failure is a road call that requires 
replacement of a bus in service due to an issue 
that is a safety hazard or when vehicle 
movement is restricted or disabled. 
Formula = (total miles/# of failures)

Monthly Benchmark/Target: >7,500 miles
*based on industry data

The focus is to provide quality service and 
respond to feedback in a timely manner. This 
graph shows the monthly rate of complaints 
per 100,000 rides  
Formula = (complaints/rides)X100,000

Monthly Benchmark/Target: <11.1
*based on prior year average



Safety

Productivity

Ev
en

ts
 P

er
 1

00
K 

M
ile

s

1.4

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
January February March April May June

0

0.5

1

1.5

Reportable Events per 100K Miles

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 P

er
 R

ev
en

ue
 H

ou
r

12.5 12.8
13.8 13.4 13.4

11.2

January February March April May June
0

5

10

15

Passengers per Revenue Hour

Page 2/2

The goal is to provide safe service and minimize 
the likelihood of all accidents. This graph 
provides the rate of reportable safety & security 
events on transit property or involving revenue 
vehicles per 100K miles. Reportable events, as 
defined by the National Transit Database, 
include: injuries requiring immediate medical 
attention away from scene; property damage 
exceeding $25,000; collisions when vehicle is 
towed away; evacuation; or fatalities. 
Formula = (events/total miles)X100,000

Monthly Benchmark/Target: <1
*based on safety goals

The goal is to increase ridership and community 
mobility. This graph shows the monthly ratio of 
rides to revenue hours. This is an industry 
standard KPI for measuring service productivity.
Formula = (rides/revenue hours)

Monthly Benchmark/Target: >11.9
*based on prior year average



Reliability

Quality

Safety

Productivity

O
n 

Ti
m

e 
%

97.0% 96.4% 96.9% 97.9% 97.4% 98.2%

January February March April May June

80%

90%

100%

On Time Performance

Co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

Pe
r 1

0K
 R

id
es

7.09
10.70

8.47 9.49
7.35

13.69

January February March April May June
0

10

20

30

Complaints Per 10K Rides

Ev
en

ts
 p

er
 1

0k
 M

ile
s

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

January February March April May June

0

Reportatble Events per 10K Miles

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 P

er
 R

ev
en

ue
 H

ou
r

1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8

January February March April May June
0

1

2

3

4

Passengers per Revenue Hour

Quarterly KPI - Demand Response Service, 2nd Quarter 2023

On time performance is a key measure of 
service reliability. A VTII vehicle is on time if it 
arrives for pick-up within 30-minute window. 
The window is 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled pick-up time. This metric shows the 
monthly percentage of trips on time. 
Formula = (on time trips/total trips)

Monthly Benchmark/Target: >90%
*based on industry data

The goal is to provide quality service and 
respond to feedback in a timely manner. This 
graph shows the monthly rate of complaints 
per 10,000 rides.
Formula = (complaints/rides)X10,000

Monthly Benchmark/Target: <27.8
*based on prior year average

The goal is to provide safe service and 
minimize the likelihood of all accidents. This 
graph provides the rate of reportable safety & 
security events on transit property or involving 
revenue vehicles per 10K miles. Reportable 
events, as defined by the National Transit 
Database, include: injuries requiring immediate 
medical attention away from scene; property 
damage exceeding $25,000; collisions when 
vehicle is towed away; evacuation; or fatalities. 
Formula = (events/total miles)X10,000
Monthly Benchmark/Target: <1
*based on safety goals

The goal is to increase community mobility 
and access. This graph shows the monthly ratio 
of rides to revenue hours. This is an industry 
standard for KPI for measuring service 
productivity. 

Formula = (rides/revenue hours)

Monthly Benchmark/Target: >1.6
*based on prior year average


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_Meeting Minutes 27-Jun-2023
	0003_1_June 2023 Payments
	0004_1_Valley Transit 2022 Audit
	0005_1_June 2023 Income Statement
	0006_1_June Ridership
	FR June Ridership
	DR June Ridership

	0007_1_FR 2nd qtr KPI
	0007_2_DR 2nd qtr KPI



